
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

 
THE NATIONAL SHOOTING SPORTS 
FOUNDATION, INC., 
 
   Plaintiff, 
 
  v. 
 
NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS 
FOUNDATION, 
 
   Defendant. 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) 

 
 
 
 
C.A. No. ______________ 
 
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL  

 
COMPLAINT FOR UNFAIR COMPETITION AND TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT 

 
PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff, The National Shooting Sports Foundation, Inc. (hereafter the 

“NSSF”), is a Connecticut non-profit tax exempt corporation with its principal place of business 

at 11 Mile Hill Road, Newtown, Connecticut 06470.  It has a membership of approximately 

7,000 and serves America’s 40 million shooting sports enthusiasts in initiatives focused on 

industry, schools, clubs and individuals.  Among its members are sportsmen’s organizations, 

public and private shooting ranges, public, private and collegiate clubs, individuals, publishers, 

and companies that manufacture, distribute, and sell target shooting and hunting related goods 

and services.  Since 1961, the NSSF has, under its NSSF and National Shooting Sports 

Foundation trademarks, worked to promote, protect and preserve hunting and the shooting 

sports, and it does this by traditional and web-based publishing, working in the community and 

sponsoring events (including combination running/target shooting biathlon, shooting sports 

competitions, a trade show, supporting U.S.A. Shooting – the U.S. Olympic team for Olympic 

shooting events, working with the Boy Scouts of America and the 4H, and other events), 

providing leadership in advancing participation in and understanding of hunting and shooting 
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sports, addressing safety concerns, addressing industry challenges, and promoting a social and 

political environment that is supportive of America’s traditional hunting and shooting heritage 

and Second Amendment freedoms. 

2. Defendant, National Scholastic Sports Foundation, doing business as the 

“NSSF” (“Scholastic”), is a Delaware non-profit tax exempt corporation with its principal place 

of business at 111 Mimosa Drive, Chapel Hill, NC 27514, and is or claims to be engaged in 

activities raising funds to implement activities relating to the sport of track and field nationally at 

the high school level, and further, in its own words, to “extend [its involvement] to all sports.”  

Such activities are carried out under the identical infringing designation NSSF and the 

confusingly similar infringing designation National Scholastic Sports Foundation. 

JURISDICTION 

3. This Court has jurisdiction over this action by virtue of:  

(a) Jurisdiction founded on the existence of a federal question arising 

under the Lanham Trademark Act.  The Court has jurisdiction under Sections 43(a) of the 

Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1121 and 1125(a), and 28 U.S.C. § 1331 on account of the 

existence of a question arising under the Constitution, laws or treaties of the United States, and 

28 U.S.C. § 1338(a) in that this case arises under the trademark laws of the United States, 

15 U.S.C. § 1051 et seq., and 28 U.S.C. § 1332(a), as this action arises between citizens of 

different States and the matter in controversy exceeds the sum or value of $75,000. 

(b) The Court has jurisdiction of the common law unfair competition 

claims herein under the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1338(b) in that said claims are joined with a 

substantial and related claim under the trademark laws of the United States, 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et 

seq. 
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(c) The Court has jurisdiction over related claims arising under the 

laws of the several States pursuant to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1338(b) in that said claims 

are joined with a substantial and related claim under the trademark laws of the United States, 15 

U.S.C. § 1051 et seq. 

(d) Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391. 

FACTS APPLICABLE TO ALL COUNTS 

4. Plaintiff, The National Shooting Sports Foundation, has long engaged in a 

wide range of activities aimed at promoting public awareness of and interest in shooting sports, 

hunting, and other sports, such as fishing and archery, which it does by functioning as a trade 

association for the industry and working locally, regionally and nationally to fulfill its mission of 

promoting, protecting and preserving hunting and the shooting sports. 

5. Firearm safety education has always been the fundamental focus of the 

NSSF throughout its history.  Over the decades, the Foundation has distributed many millions of 

safety brochures and videos on the safe and responsible use and storage of firearms, including to 

our nation’s elementary and high school teachers and students, and has delivered its safety 

messages on television, radio and in print and through police departments across the country. 

6. The NSSF fulfills its mission, among other ways, by promoting the 

prominence of America’s Olympic athletes in the shooting sports, for example the recent 

achievement of two gold, two silver and one bronze medal at the 2008 Beijing Olympic Games 

(Exhibit A), and providing resources for amateur student-athletes in college, high school and 

elementary school to learn about and participate in the shooting sports through its various 

initiatives such as the NSSF’s Collegiate Shooting Sports Initiative and its scholastic shooting 

programs – the Scholastic Clay Target Program (two of the Beijing Olympic medalists 
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participated in SCTP) and the Scholastic Rifle Program.  Exhibit B.  The NSSF regularly 

provides financial assistance and other support to colleges and the local shooting sports 

community, including coaches, parents and others. 

7. The NSSF together with the United States Biathlon Association also 

sponsors the Summer Biathlon.  Exhibit C.  A spin-off from the Olympic sport of biathlon, 

which combines cross-country skiing and target shooting, Summer Biathlon keeps the shooting 

but substitutes running for skiing.  The Summer Biathlon received laudatory coverage in 

publications from Runner’s World to Women’s Sports and Fitness to USA Today and The New 

York Times, as well as, on ESPN Running and Racing programs. 

History of the National Shooting Sports Foundation 

8. The history of the NSSF’s involvement in the hunting and shooting sports 

community goes back to a series of industry meetings in the late 1950s sponsored by Field & 

Stream magazine.  Following this, the National Shooting Sports Foundation was chartered in 

1961 to promote a better understanding of and a greater participation in hunting and the shooting 

sports. 

9. Recognizing the growing urbanization of America, the NSSF’s first efforts 

sought to build public awareness of the sportsman’s role in conservation and the contributions of 

our system of wildlife management through landmark efforts such as the annual National 

Hunting and Fishing Day.  In 1972, upon prompting by the NSSF, the United States Congress 

formalized National Hunting and Fishing Day and every president since Richard Nixon has 

issued official proclamations of support for the annual commemoration, now recognized as one 

of the most effective grassroots campaigns ever undertaken to promote traditional outdoor sports. 
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10. Over the years, the NSSF has continued its public outreach efforts while 

also developing a wide array of programs to encourage growth in participation in hunting and the 

shooting sports and the safe and responsible use of firearms.  The NSSF provides a range of 

programs, websites, publications, events and services to promote firearm safety, access and 

opportunities in the shooting sports and hunting.  It has published informational brochures.  

Exhibit D and E.  It has also published brochures promoting wildlife management and 

conservation.  Exhibit F.  At least as far back as the 1970s, the NSSF regularly published 

newletter entitled “Reports....”  Exhibit G.  It also seeks to educate parents and others in dealing 

with the interest of youngsters in the shooting sports.  Exhibit H.  More recent efforts involve use 

of modern social media and the Internet.  It also works to serve the industry through its trade 

magazines, such as “NSSF’s SHOT Business” and “The Range Report.”  Exhibit I. 

11. In the early 1980s, the NSSF was in the forefront of promoting the then-

new sport of sporting clays and generating widespread publicity for target shooting games of all 

kinds.  For example, in 1988, the NSSF established “Sportsman’s Team Challenge,” which was 

covered by ABC, NBC and CBS Miami affiliate stations on their news programs.  At the 

national level, the NSSF produced “"Sportsman’s Team Challenge,” a television series which 

appeared on ESPN through the 1990s and was the first shooting event in the country to attract a 

major non-industry title sponsorship from Chevrolet Trucks. 

12. Over the past several decades, the NSSF has greatly expanded its efforts to 

strengthen America’s hunting and shooting sports traditions through nationally based efforts 

such as STEP OUTSIDE, a mentor program encouraging outdoor enthusiasts to welcome 

friends, family and special guests to share hunting and other outdoor experiences such as target 

shooting, archery and fishing, and the Hunting Heritage Partnership which provides grants to 
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state wildlife agencies and regional fish and wildlife associations for programs that improve 

access and opportunity . 

13. Since its inception, the NSSF has been a leader in promoting the sport 

with younger enthusiasts who might enjoy hunting and the shooting sports.  The NSSF has long 

been a major supporter of our nation’s youth shooting programs such as those organized by Boy 

Scouts of America Councils and the National 4-H.  The Boy Scouts have long taught youth the 

safe, responsible and intelligent handling, care and use of firearms, BB guns and air guns.  The 

NSSF is an avid supporter of the Boy Scouts merit badge program in shotgun and rifle shooting. 

14. The NSSF’s own programs have offered excellent opportunities for 

youngsters to get started in the shooting sports.  The NSSF’s “Scholastic Clay Target Program” 

introduces youngsters to the shooting sports in an adult-supervised setting and teaches them 

firearms safety and responsibility, as well as, positive life lessons, such as respect for authority, 

personal responsibility, teamwork and sportsmanship.  Through the NSSF’s Junior USA 

Shooting Patch Program, participants learn safety and shooting basics while earning official 

Junior USA Shooting team riflery or shotgunning patches.  The NSSF’s Project ChildSafe, 

initiated in 1999, in partnership with state government and local law enforcement has now 

distributed more than 35 million firearm safety locks in all 50 states and United States territories.  

Project ChildSafe was supported by a U.S. Department of Justice grant and other industry 

members and became a component of Project Safe Neighborhoods, a gun-violence prevention 

initiative of the Bush Administration.  And in coordination with the U.S. Department of Veterans 

Affairs, the NSSF has distributed more than 1 million Project ChildSafe firearm safety locks to 

Veterans Affairs medical facilities across the country and to members of our Armed Forces 

returning from Iraq and Afghanistan.  
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15. Since 1979, critical funding for the NSSF’s many programs and activities 

has come from the NSSF’s industry trade show, the Shooting, Hunting and Outdoor Trade Show 

(the “NSSF Show”).  From an inaugural event of 50,000 square feet of exhibit space, the NSSF 

Show has grown to some 630,000 square feet of exhibit space today and is the largest trade 

exposition for professional buyers and sellers of shooting sports, hunting, archery, and law 

enforcement products and services (and at one time fishing gear and tackle) in the world. 

16. The NSSF and the National Sporting Clays Association (“NSCA”) have 

established a four-year degree Scholarship Program.  Every year, NSCA and the NSSF present a 

scholarship to an eligible high school senior.  The NSSF also has a scholarship program of its 

own that provides financial assistance to employees and family members of its voting member 

companies to attend college or vocational school.  The NSSF provides resources to educational 

institutions through its Collegiate Shooting Sports Initiative.  The Collegiate Shooting Sports 

Initiative was created to raise awareness of shooting sports opportunities at the college level; 

provide financial and non-financial assistance in developing college shooting clubs or teams; 

serve as a resource for colleges and students interested in learning more about the shooting 

sports; and help grow the shooting sports at the college level. 

17. As detailed above, the NSSF uses publishing, the Internet, advertising, and 

its various promotional activities and initiatives to develop a brand identity with the general 

public, the educational community and the industry.  All of the above activities involve use of its 

NSSF trademark and its NATIONAL SHOOTING SPORTS FOUNDATION trademark 

(hereinafter the “Trademarks”).  See Exhibits A-I. 

18. The NSSF has devoted substantial time and resources in establishing its 

business and in promoting the Trademarks and their association with the services provided by the 
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NSSF.  The long and continued efforts of Plaintiff and the fine quality of the services rendered 

by the NSSF under the Trademarks has resulted in strong consumer recognition of the 

Trademarks as being associated with services provided by plaintiff. 

19. As a result of such efforts, the NSSF has become well and favorably 

known in the communities in which it provides services, gaining a reputation for integrity, 

responsibility, quality and reliability. 

20. The NSSF has incurred great expense and has devoted substantial time 

and resources to make the Trademarks and its associated services readily recognizable in the 

sporting community.  Plaintiff’s investments and efforts have been successful as the Trademarks 

have received widespread recognition from the public, are highly distinctive in the sporting 

community, and denote to purchasers services which originate with the NSSF. 

NSSF Federal Trademark Registrations and Applications 

21. The NSSF has also applied for and/or received numerous Federal 

registrations for its Trademarks, first filing an application to register the trademark NATIONAL 

SHOOTING SPORTS FOUNDATION on May 18, 1967, claiming a date of first use of 

January 10, 1961 and a date of first use in interstate commerce of February 9, 1961 (Exhibit J), 

and since said filing date, said dates of first use by Plaintiff have been of public record at the 

U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.  

22. The NSSF first filed its application to register the trademark NSSF on 

May 18, 1967, claiming a date of first use of June 1971 and a date of first use in interstate 

commerce in June 1971 (Exhibit K), and since said filing date, said dates of first use by Plaintiff 

have been of public record at the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. 
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23. The NSSF is the owner of United States trademark registration 

no. 1,526,241 directed to the trademark NSSF for development and promotion of a better 

understanding of the shooting sports by the American public.  This registration issued on 

February 21, 1989, and is currently in force.  Exhibit L. 

24. The NSSF is the owner of United States trademark registration 

no. 2,829,518 directed to the trademark NATIONAL SHOOTING SPORTS FOUNDATION as 

applied to association services for promoting public interest and awareness of shooting sports 

and firearms safety.  This registration issued on January 13, 2004 and is currently in force.  

Exhibit M. 

25. The NSSF has filed for a United States trademark registration directed to 

the trademark NSSF for association services, namely, promoting public awareness of and interest 

in shooting sports, outdoor sports, hunting, fishing, archery and firearms safety.  Exhibit N. 

26. The NSSF has filed for a United States trademark registration for the 

trademark NATIONAL SHOOTING SPORTS FOUNDATION as applied to services for 

promoting public interest and awareness of shooting, outdoor sports, hunting, fishing, archery 

and firearms safety.  Exhibit O. 

27. The NSSF is the owner of United States trademark registration 

no. 3,441,926 directed to the trademark SCTP for encouraging amateur sports and physical 

education by organizing, promoting, sponsoring, sanctioning, conducting, administering, 

regulating and governing amateur athletic programs and activities.  This registration issued on 

June 3, 2008, and is currently in force.  The NSSF uses this trademark in connection with its 

SCHOLASTIC CLAY TARGET PROGRAM.  Exhibit P.  
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Defendant’s Activities and Planned Expansion into Other Sports 

28. Plaintiff recently became aware that Defendant was using the infringing 

trademarks NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION and NSSF (the “Infringing 

Designations”).  Like the NSSF, Defendant Scholastic has implemented such use of the NSSF 

and NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION in connection with sports-related 

activities (including college related activities as well as activities involving younger students), 

and in connection with running sports, also like the NSSF.  Exhibit Q. 

29. Such activities carried out under the Infringing Designations NATIONAL 

SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION and NSSF also involve fundraising.  Exhibit Q. 

30. On its website, Defendant has announced that “[u]ltimately, it is to extend 

to all sports but, to date, has been involved only in the sport of track and field.”  Exhibit R.  

Upon information and belief, Defendant is planning that such activities will be carried out under 

the Infringing Designations NSSF and NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION. 

31. On its Facebook page, Defendant repeats its intention to extend its 

activities under the Infringing Designations NSSF and NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS 

FOUNDATION “to all sports,” as that designation clearly implies.  Exhibit S. 

32. Like Plaintiff NSSF, Defendant has publicized connections with the 

Olympic Games, quoting Olympic medalist Sanya Richards and, also like Plaintiff, promoting its 

grants to younger athletes under the Infringing Designations NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC 

SPORTS FOUNDATION and NSSF.  Exhibit Q. 

33. After Plaintiff’s adoption and use of the Trademarks, Defendant, without 

any authorization (and upon information and belief, with actual knowledge of Plaintiff’s use of 

the Trademarks) in contravention of the NSSF’s trademark rights, adopted and used and/or 
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continued to use Plaintiff’s Trademark NSSF and the Infringing Designation NATIONAL 

SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION in interstate commerce.  Such use by the Defendant of 

infringing identical and confusingly similar versions of Plaintiff’s Trademarks, has been 

committed with the objective of advancing Defendant’s own commercial activities. 

34. Defendant has used and continues to use the Trademarks, derivatives, 

and/or colorable imitations of Plaintiff’s Trademarks in direct competition with Plaintiff.  

Defendant has used and continues to use these derivatives and/or colorable imitations of 

Plaintiff’s Trademarks in connection with fundraising activities, advertising and promotion of 

services, in a manner that is likely to cause confusion or mistake or to deceive purchasers as to 

the source of origin of Defendant’s services, and Defendant has profited and been unfairly 

enriched by such infringement of Plaintiff’s Trademarks, in an amount not presently known.  

35. As a direct and proximate result of these acts of unfair competition, 

trademark infringement and false designation of origin, Plaintiff has sustained and will continue 

to sustain irreparable damage and financial damage to its business, goodwill, reputation and 

profits, in an amount not presently known, and Defendant has diluted or will tend to dilute the 

distinctive quality of the NSSF’s Trademarks.  Defendant has continued its infringing activities 

after notice of infringement, in disregard of Plaintiff’s rights and with the deliberate intention to 

continue to profit from the goodwill and fame of the NSSF.  

Actual Confusion and Free-Riding under Infringing Designations 

36. Upon information and belief, many members of Plaintiff’s organization 

and members of the general public have been confused by the use of the Infringing Designations 

NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION and NSSF by Defendant. 

Case 1:12-cv-00511-UNA   Document 1   Filed 04/23/12   Page 11 of 18 PageID #: 11



 12

37. For example, upon information and belief, actual confusion is evidenced 

by the fact that of the 45 followers which Defendant has on Twitter, roughly half are associated 

with hunting and the shooting sports, providing evidence of actual confusion.  Exhibit T. 

38. The use of the Infringing Designations NSSF and NATIONAL 

SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION constitutes a misrepresentation of origin, and an unfair 

tactic by Defendant to confuse members of the donating public into believing that Defendant is 

associated with the NSSF.  Upon information and belief, such infringing activities have 

misdirected members of the public to the website nationalscholastic.org. 

39. Defendant’s activities by virtue of its using the Infringing Designations 

NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION and NSSF have resulted in actual 

confusion and in actual damage to the NSSF. 

40. Defendants have deliberately misled and will continue to mislead 

Plaintiff’s members, as well as the public at large, to believe, contrary to fact, that Defendant is 

associated with the NSSF and that Defendant’s services are marketed, sponsored or endorsed by, 

or affiliated with, Plaintiff, and/or have consciously taken advantage of the confusingly similar 

and identical nature of the Infringing Designations to the Trademarks to build their business.  

Defendant is unfairly competing with Plaintiff by trading on and disparaging Plaintiff’s goodwill 

symbolized by its Trademarks. 

41. Such confusion has resulted from willful and intentional plans 

implemented by Defendant for many years to cause confusion and benefit from the goodwill 

associated with the NSSF. 

42. Defendant’s actions will continue and will continue to cause the NSSF 

irreparable injury unless enjoined by this Court. 

Case 1:12-cv-00511-UNA   Document 1   Filed 04/23/12   Page 12 of 18 PageID #: 12



 13

COUNT ONE 
UNFAIR COMPETITION 

43. As a cause of action and ground for relief, Plaintiff alleges and 

incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 42 of this complaint as a part of this Count. 

44. Defendant misappropriated Plaintiff’s goodwill associated with the 

Trademarks, using the Infringing Designations NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS 

FOUNDATION and NSSF, for Defendant’s own competitive advantage. 

45. Defendant is misappropriating the goodwill associated with over a half 

century (Exhibit U) of use of the Trademarks and which has given Plaintiff a preeminent position 

in the community. 

46. Defendant has blatantly and brazenly misappropriated Plaintiff’s 

Trademarks for Defendant’s own commercial advantage.  Defendant used and continues to use 

Plaintiff’s property, and continues to benefit from such use. 

47. Such infringing use of the Infringing Designations NATIONAL 

SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION and NSSF by Defendant has and continues to 

irreparably injure Plaintiff.  

48. Plaintiff has suffered damage and Defendant has been unjustly enriched in 

amounts at present uncertain, but believed to be in excess of $500,000 on account of said 

complained of acts of Defendant.  Plaintiff is entitled to judgment for monies diverted from the 

NSSF to Defendant and any damages sustained by Plaintiff in consequence of the deliberate 

nature of the unfair competition and infringement by Defendant in an amount equaling three 

times said damages. 

49. By reason of the acts of Defendant herein alleged, Plaintiff has been 

damaged and, unless restrained, Defendant will continue to deceive the public, impair the value 
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of Plaintiff’s Trademarks and otherwise will cause Plaintiff immediate and irreparable harm.  

Plaintiff is entitled to an injunction enjoining Defendant from using Plaintiff’s Trademarks and 

other designations of origin. 

COUNT TWO 
INFRINGEMENT OF FEDERALLY REGISTERED TRADEMARK  

50. As a cause of action and ground for relief, Plaintiff alleges and 

incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 49 of this complaint as a part of this Count. 

51. Such actions by Defendant constitute infringement of Plaintiff’s above 

noted federal trademark registrations, and Plaintiff has been injured by reason of such 

infringement. 

COUNT THREE 
INFRINGEMENT OF COMMON-LAW TRADEMARK RIGHTS 

52. As a cause of action and ground for relief, Plaintiff alleges and 

incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 51 of this complaint as a part of this Count. 

53. Plaintiff’s services, provided under the Trademarks, have been rendered in 

great numbers and continue to be extensively performed by Plaintiff throughout the United 

States. 

54. Plaintiff derives substantial benefits from the Trademarks. 

55. Defendant’s acts are a false description and representation that 

Defendant’s services are furnished by, sponsored by and/or affiliated with Plaintiff.  Said acts 

constitute common law trademark infringement, passing off and free-riding, and are in violation 

of the unfair competition law of the several states in that Defendant has used, in connection with 

goods and/or services, a false designation of origin and a false description and representation, 

including words likely to confuse the public. 
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56. By such actions Defendant has damaged the NSSF. 

COUNT FOUR 
FEDERAL UNFAIR COMPETITION -- LANHAM ACT SECTION 43 

57. As a cause of action and ground for relief, Plaintiff alleges and 

incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 56 of this complaint as a part of this Count. 

58. Plaintiff, prior to the acts complained of herein, has been and is now 

engaged in interstate commerce by virtue of the ongoing provision of services under the 

Trademarks.  By virtue of the foregoing activities of Plaintiff, the Trademarks have become 

famous. 

59. The aforesaid acts of Defendant constitute unfair competition and passing 

off, and are likely to cause the trade and the public to erroneously believe that Defendant’s 

products and services originate with and/or are guaranteed by Plaintiff, or otherwise associated 

with Plaintiff.  Said acts are in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) in that Defendant has used, in 

connection with goods and services, a false designation of origin and a false description and 

representation, including words, reproductions and other symbols tending falsely to describe or 

represent the same and have caused such services to enter into interstate commerce. 

60. Such acts have injured and continue to injure Plaintiff’s business 

reputation and dilute or otherwise injure or destroy the distinctive character of Plaintiff’s 

Trademarks and the quality of Plaintiff’s reputation associated with its Trademarks, all to 

Plaintiff’s substantial and irreparable harm.  As a result, Plaintiff is entitled to relief from this 

court under 15 U.S.C. § 1126(c). 

61. As a result of Defendant’s willful, fraudulent and malicious acts, Plaintiff 

has suffered damage, and Defendant has been unjustly enriched.  Plaintiff is entitled to judgment 

for Defendant’s collections of contributions made on account of the infringement of the rights of 
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Plaintiff and any damages sustained by Plaintiff in consequence of the deliberate nature of the 

infringement by Defendant in an amount equaling three times said damages. 

62. By reason of the acts of Defendant alleged herein, Plaintiff has been 

damaged and, unless restrained, Defendant has and will continue to confuse and deceive the 

public, impair the value of Plaintiff’s Trademarks and otherwise cause Plaintiff immediate and 

irreparable harm. 

63. Defendant is liable to Plaintiff for violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays: 

(a) This Court grant and enter a judgment that the above-referenced Federal 

trademark registrations of Plaintiff are valid at law and infringed by Defendant and that 

Defendant and all persons acting in concert with it be preliminarily and finally enjoined from 

using the Infringing Designations and otherwise infringing upon the Trademarks and goodwill of 

Plaintiff. 

(b) Defendant be required to account to Plaintiff for any and all profits and 

funds collected or otherwise derived by Defendant from its activities, as well as all damages 

sustained by the Plaintiff by reason of Defendant’s use of the Infringing Designations 

NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC SPORTS FOUNDATION and NSSF and unfair competition herein 

alleged. 

(c) A preliminary and final order enjoining Defendant from (i) using the 

Trademarks and confusingly similar designations and terms derived therefrom or confusingly 

similar thereto, (ii) using the Infringing Designations and terms derived therefrom or confusingly 
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similar thereto, and (iii) mimicking Plaintiff’s Trademarks in its advertisements, website and 

otherwise. 

(d) A preliminary and final order requiring that all documents, electronic 

documents, websites, materials, labels, signs, products, packages, wrappings, receptacles, 

advertisements, apparel, merchandise and other business and promotional materials and products 

in Defendant’s possession or control bearing the Infringing Designations or other infringing 

designations of origin or any reproduction, counterfeit, or copy thereof (including all literature, 

server copies, uploaded copies, video recordings, audio recordings, publications, contracts, 

information and other materials embodying the infringing activity forming the subject matter of 

this complaint), and all plates, molds, matrices, electronic files and other means of making the 

same shall be delivered up and destroyed. 

(e) An order that all Internet traffic to the website nationalscholastic.org be 

directed to a portal page designed to mitigate confusion and giving the viewer a choice to 

proceed to a web page to be designated by Plaintiff or a web page to be designated by Defendant. 

(f) An order that the Defendant transfer and assign any domain name bearing 

the Trademarks or Infringing Designations, and any other similar domain names to the NSSF. 

(g) An order that any and all of Defendant’s trademark registrations of the 

Infringing Designations and confusingly similar and or otherwise infringing marks (whether on 

account of dilution of the Trademarks or otherwise) are null and void. 

(h) Plaintiff be awarded actual damages and punitive damages, and that such 

damages be trebled, and that costs of this action be assessed against Defendant. 

(i) Plaintiff have such other and further relief as is just, including costs and 

attorneys’ fees. 
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38, Plaintiff National Shooting Sports 

Foundation, Inc. hereby demands a jury trial of any and all issues in this action so triable. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
 
Anthony H. Handal 
David Dushane 
HANDAL & MOROFSKY  LLC 
501 Kings Highway East 
Fairfield, CT  06825 
(917) 880-0811 
 

MORRIS, NICHOLS, ARSHT & TUNNELL LLP 
 
/s/ Rodger D. Smith II 
       
Rodger D. Smith II (#3778) 
1201 North Market Street 
P.O. Box 1347 
Wilmington, DE  19899 
(302) 658-9200 
rsmith@mnat.com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

April 23, 2012 
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